
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Graham

AGENDA September 21, 2016

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Graham

Presentation Commissioner Randy Fairbanks will honor Ryan Martin for winning the World Boxing Council's
Continental America's lightweight title.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - August 31, 2016

Minutes Agenda Session - August 31, 2016

Minutes Regular Meeting - September 7, 2016

Report Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon September 12, 2016

Res. No. 916-21 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, the bond and oath of Assessor of Property, the oaths of Deputy
Assessors of Property, the oaths of members of the Hamilton County Board of Education, the
bond of Hamilton County 911 Emergency Communications District and the oaths of Deputy
Sheriffs.

Res. No. 916-22 A Resolution making an appropriation to Highland Park Neighborhood Association in the amount
of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 916-23 A Resolution approving the entering  into  of a contract between Hamilton County, Tennessee,
and the Tennessee Valley Authority (“TVA”) for the Hamilton County Emergency Medical
Services Department to respond to emergencies at TVA’s Raccoon Mountain pump storage
plant.

Res. No. 916-24 A Resolution making an appropriation to Want To Foundation, Inc., in the amount of ten
thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Eight.

Res. No. 916-25 A Resolution applying to the Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) and accepting
reimbursement to resurface and upgrade guardrails on Sequoyah Access Road for the Highway
Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
resolution.

Res. No. 916-26 A Resolution to amend the Schools Federal Projects Fund budget by adding $484,610 to the FY
2016-2017 budget; to amend the Self-funded Projects Fund budget by appropriating fund
balance of $130,580 and additional revenue of $881 to the FY 2016-2017 budget; to amend the
General Purpose Fund budget by appropriating fund balance of $3,485,000 and additional
revenue of $347,000 to the FY 2016-2017 budget.

Res. No. 916-27A A Resolution to Rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District,
properties located at 10317, 10327 and 10331 East Brainerd Road.

Res. No. 916-27B A Resolution to Rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District,
properties located at 10317, 10327 and 10331 East Brainerd Road.

Res. No. 916-28 A Resolution Granting a Special Exceptions Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development
for properties located at 10317, 10327 and 10331 East Brainerd Road.

Res. No. 916-29 A Resolution to Rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to C-3 General Business
Commercial District, property located at 8875 Highway 58.

Res. No. 916-30 A Resolution Granting a Special Permit for a Short Term Vacation Rental for property located at
6308 Bay Lane.

Res. No. 916-31 A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District,
property located at 9120 Lovell Road.



Res. No. 916-32A A Resolution to Rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to C-3 General Business
Commercial District, properties located at 5007 and 5011 Orchard Drive.

Res. No. 916-32B A Resolution to Rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to C-3 General Business
Commercial District, properties located at 5007 and 5011 Orchard Drive.

Res. No. 916-33 A Resolution to accept a donation of an Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) with an estimated
retail value of $1,795 from the Firehouse Subs Public Safety Foundation to the Hamilton County
Sheriff’s Office.

Res. No. 916-34 A Resolution to relinquish Hamilton County’s interest in a 1991 Ford F-250 truck co-titled with
Sale Creek Fire & Rescue upon certain terms and conditions.

Res. No. 916-35 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of August 1, 2016,
through August 31, 2016, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 916-36 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
accept a contract amendment  with the Tennessee Department of Health for the provision of
WIC (women, infants and children) for the time period October 1, 2015 to September 30, 2019 in
the amount of $6,525,700.00 and to decrease the expense and revenue budgets by $9,900.00.

Res. No. 916-37 A Resolution to amend the "Master List of Roads and Speed Limits" so as to accept the
following district road and to establish a speed limit therefor: Skybrook Drive as extended.

Res. No. 916-38 A Resolution to amend the "Master List of Roads and Speed Limits" so as to accept the
following district road and to establish a speed limit therefore: Haven Port Lane.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  August 31, 2016 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 31st day of August, 2016, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9.  Total absent -0. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Beck introduced Pastor Brent A. Baughman, Stanley Heights 

Baptist Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Beck led in the pledge to the 

flag. 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 

2 
 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

accept Hamilton County Commissioner Marty Haynes, District 3, letter of resignation, 

effective August 31st.  

 

It was noted that Commissioner Haynes submitted the letter during the August 

17th, 2016 Regular meeting and a copy of the letter was filed with the Clerk’s office. 

 

The foregoing Motion to accept the resignation was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

  

  



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 

3 
 

 

Being no further business Chairman Bankston declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

      

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved: 

 

 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  August 31, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 31st day of August, 2016, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 2 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered 

as follows: 

• The Trustee’s Amended Excess Fee Report for June 2016 would be submitted 
for the record. 

• The Trustee’s Monthly Report for July 2016 would be submitted for the record. 
• The Trustee’s Excess Fee Report for June 2016 would be submitted for the 

record. 
• The Trustee’s Unaudited Financial Report ending June 2016 would be submitted 

for the record. 
• The Trustee’s Unpaid Property Tax Levy Report for 2015 would be submitted for 

the record. 
• The Trustee’s Unaudited Financial Report ending June 2016 would be submitted 

for the record. 
• The Juvenile Court Clerk’s Report for June 2016 would be submitted for the 

record. 
• Resolution No. 916-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  

This required no committee assignment. 
• Resolution Nos. 916-12 through 916-19 were assigned to the Finance 

Committee, chaired by Commissioner Boyd. 
• Resolution No. 916-20 was assigned to the Zoning Committee, chaired by 

Commissioner Haynes. 
• Resolution Nos. 916-2 through 916-11 were heard by a Committee of the Whole. 

 
 

Chairman Bankston stated that Resolution Nos. 916-2 through 916-20 would now 

be heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 3 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-2 

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item, which appoints Chris Jackson as 

Director of Corrections effective September 7, 2016. He noted that Barbara Payne 

retired as Director of Corrections effective July 15, 2016. Mr. Jackson is a 17 year 

veteran with Hamilton County Government and serves as second in command to Mrs. 

Payne.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-3 

 

Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which reappoints Reverend Paul 

McDaniel to the Carter Street Corporation Board of Directors for a term ending August 

18, 2020. 

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 4 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-4 

  

 Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which approves an 

appropriation to East Lake Neighborhood Association, Inc. in the amount of $1,000.00 

from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district four. It was noted the 

funds will assist with the East Lake Back to School Festival. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-5 

  

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which approves an 

appropriation to Unity Performing Arts Foundation of Chattanooga in the amount of 

$1,500.00 from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district four. It was 

noted the funds will assist with program development. 

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 5 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-6 

 

Commissioner Bankston spoke regarding this item, which approves the 

expenditure of $3,400.00 from discretionary bond funds. It was noted that $932.94 will 

come from district nine discretionary bond funds and the Board of Commissioners will 

fund $2,467.06 from line of credit and/or bond funds. It was noted the funds will assist 

with purchasing a paint machine for Ooltewah High School.   

 

Commissioner Graham questioned why the county’s line of credit was being 

used for unbudgeted purchases. Commissioner Bankston stated that he didn’t have 

enough discretionary bond funds.  

 

Additional comments regarding this resolution were made after Resolution No. 

916-7 was heard in Committee of the Whole. 

 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-7 

  

 Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item, which awards five days of paid leave 

for the purpose of encouraging all Hamilton County employees to participate in the 

United Way campaign through payroll deduction. It was noted that five participating 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 6 

employees will be selected through a random drawing and each will be awarded one 

day of paid leave. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

At this time Commissioner Mackey and Commissioner Graham made additional 

comments regarding Resolution No. 916-6. 

 

Commissioner Mackey noted his support for the resolution and added that he 

would like to see discretionary monies back on the table for discussion. 

 

Commissioner Graham noted that he asked, “Why” out of fairness to Hamilton 

County. He noted that the line of credit is designed to purchase things that general 

government needs within the budget. He noted the county’s outstanding AAA bond 

rating and stated his concerns about setting a precedent. 

 

Commissioner Mackey noted everyone is concerned with the finances of the 

county. He stated he would rather spend the money on kids and athletics, than spend it 

on the jails. He stated his supported for Resolution No. 916-6 and noted it was money 

well spent. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 7 

In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question, Albert Kiser, Finance 

Administrator stated it was a good use of bond money. He noted that the county does 

have a limited bond capacity; however, the purchase was adequate use of bond funds.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-8 

  

Attorney Taylor spoke regarding this item, which clarifies the compensation of the 

Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners, 

and to correct the compensation paid to said previous commission officers. It was noted 

that previous Resolution No. 990-1 established the compensation of the Chairman and 

the Chairman Pro Tempore at forty percent and thirty percent more than the 

commissioner’s base rate. It was also noted that the Hamilton County Board of 

Commissioner’s base rate was established in the fiscal year 2000 budget at $16,320, 

and the Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore at $21,320 and $18,820.  

 

The base compensation for all members has been adjusted annually thereafter to 

reflect the same percentage increase as that given to the County Mayor in accordance 

with Resolution No. 599-50A and T.C.A 5-5-107(b)(2). He also stated that the 

compensation of previous Hamilton County officers over the past six year will be 

adjusted accordingly. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 8 

Commissioner Graham stated he did not support the resolution and noted that in 

the past the Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore received $5,000 and $2,500 more 

than other members. In addition, all commissioners received the same percentage 

increase given to county employees. He stated that the proposed clarification would 

give the Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore substantial raises. He stated the forty 

and thirty percentage increases equal out to an estimated $9,100 and $6,800. He noted 

that after the Commission was made aware of the need for clarification through a legal 

meeting; he spoke with a prior commissioner.  

 

He stated the commissioner served when the base salaries were established for 

fiscal year 2000 (See 06-21-99 Letter to the Board of Commissioners). According to that 

one commissioner, the intent was to stay at the $5,000/$2,500, simply because it made 

it easier going forward. He recommended that the resolution be revised to a percentage 

that is in line with what the Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore are being paid 

currently.  

 

In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Mr. Kiser stated the 

$5,000/$2,500 equals to a 30.6% and 15.3%. Commissioner Boyd stated that he 

supports clarifying current policy that is in line with what is currently being paid. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 9 

Commissioner Beck noted that “current policy” could be interrupted either way 

and disagrees with a policy that is not in line with an adopted resolution (Res. No. 990-

1).  

 

In response to Commissioner Fields request for clarification, Attorney Taylor 

agreed that a discrepancy was discovered between what is currently being paid to the 

Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore. The amount being paid is different than what 

was adopted in 1990 (Res. No. 990-1). The purpose of Resolution No. 916-8 is to clean 

up the discrepancy, how it is cleaned up, is up to the commission.  

 

 In response to a legal question from Commissioner Mackey, Attorney Taylor 

confirmed that there is justification for what is being done but the record is not clear.  

 

 In response to Assessor-elect Marty Haynes’ question, Attorney Taylor stated if 

passed the resolution would go back and compensate Hamilton County officers over the 

past six years.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-9 

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item which renews the unit price contract 

with Chattanooga Funeral Home, Crematory and Florist to provide cremation services 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 10 

for the renewal contract period beginning September 4, 2016 and ending September 3, 

2019. He stated the county had 130 cremations last year and thanked Gene Pike, 

President of Chattanooga Funeral Home for performing the service at cost. He stated 

Mr. Pike truly believes it’s his civic duty and the county hopes to renew the contract for 

an additional three years.   

 

In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Mayor Coppinger pointed out that 

the real question is where would the county go if Mr. Pike decided he didn’t want to 

renew his contract. 

 

In response to Commissioner’s Boyd’s question, Mayor Coppinger noted that this 

year’s budget per cremation was increase by $100.00. Commissioner Boyd stated that 

$375.00 is still a great deal.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-10 

 

Albert Kiser, Administrator of Finance spoke regarding this item which executes 

and delivers an amendment to the revolving credit agreement (Res. No. 913-5) dated 

September 1, 2013 with U.S. Bank National Association; and providing for certain other 

matters related thereto. He noted this will renew the county’s $55 million dollar line of 

credit for an additional thirty months and adds 4 ½ basis points to the county’s spread. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 11 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-11 

  

Todd Leamon, Administrator of Public Works and County Engineer spoke 

regarding this item, which accepts the offer of Lee-Smith, Inc for two tandem axle 

chassis with roll-off hoist amounting to $75,000.00 for the Highway Department.  He 

noted that if passed this would allow the Highway Department to replace two prior 

purchased tandem axle chassis with roll-off hoist, which have performed unsatisfactory.  

Both trucks are a 2012, one has 50,000 miles and is still under warranty, the other has 

250,000 miles and is no longer under warranty. He noted that the industry has identified 

design flaws and Lee-Smith is willing to replace both trucks with brand new ones for 

$75,000.00. The 2012 trucks will be returned to Lee-Smith. The beds will be taken off 

the 2012 chassis and put on the 2017 trucks.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, announced that the 

Finance Committee would meet in the Commission Room immediately following the 

Agenda Session.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 12 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 916-20 

  

 Todd Leamon, Administrator of Public Works and County Engineer spoke 

regarding this item, which amends the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” by 

changing the speed limits of Village Way Drive, West Village Lane, and East Village 

Lane from 30 miles per hour to 20 miles per hour, west of Dent Road, North. He noted 

that the reduction was requested by residents living along the roadways. After thorough 

investigation it was recommended the speed limit be reduced to 20 miles.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 

Assessor-elect Marty Haynes stated he was thankful for the opportunity to serve 

as District 3 County Commissioner. He thanked his biggest supporter, his mother 

Norma Haynes, who was present in the audience. He recited Ecclesiastes 3, “To 

everything there is a season, and a time to every purpose under the heaven” and stated 

that his season as County Commissioner ended today and he looked forward to serving 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 13 

as the Assessor beginning tomorrow. He spoke highly of his predecessor Bill Bennett 

and noted that he was filling big shoes. He thanked District 3 for allowing him to serve 

his hometown community and stated he will truly miss being their commissioner. 

 

Commission members, Mayor Coppinger, and Attorney Taylor spoke highly of 

Marty Haynes and thanked him for his service as Commissioner. They wished him the 

best of luck as Assessor of Property and look forward to working with him.  

Several Commission members and Mayor Coppinger gave their condolences to 

the family of George Shuford, a renowned football official and former member of the 

County Commission, who passed away August 27th, 2016.  

 

Commissioner Graham announced that on September 10th, the Lookout Valley 

Lions Club will be holding its annual golf tournament at the Trenton Golf Club. He 

reported that 100% of the proceeds are used to provide food, toys, and gifts for children 

and families at Christmas. He stated that Commissioner Fields will also be participating 

in the golf tournament. 

 

Commissioner Graham also spoke about the District 3 Commission seat 

vacancy, and stated that the Commission should appoint an interim to serve for the next 

two months.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 14 

Commissioner Fields announced that the Signal Mountain Lions Club will be 

hosting their annual Labor Day barbeque at Althous Park and invited everyone to 

attend. 

 

Mayor Coppinger reminded everyone that a swearing in ceremony for various 

recently elected officials would be held at 9:00 am on Thursday, September 1st at the 

Chattanooga Trade and Convention Center. He also thanked Marty Haynes’ mother, 

Norma Haynes for attending today’s meeting.  

 

Chairman Bankston noted that George Shuford’s family will receive friends at the 

funeral home today 2-8 pm, and tomorrow 1-2 pm. Funeral services will be held at 2 

p.m. on Thursday, Sept. 1, at the North Chapel of Chattanooga Funeral Home. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Andy Ziegler residing at 6130 Champion Road addressed the commission and 

reported that his neighbors are living in extremely poor conditions. He reported they are 

currently living in a camper with no power or running water.  He reported that he has 

filed several reports with the Health Department and the Police Department. Mayor 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

 15 

Coppinger requested that Mr. Ziegler meet with him and the Health Department 

immediately following today’s meeting.  

  

Being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting adjourned 

until Wednesday, September 7th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 

           

__________   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  September 7, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 7th day of September, 2016, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Bankston. Total present 

– 8. Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 2 

Commissioner Graham introduced Reverend Caleb Pitkin, Signal Mountain 

United Methodist Church, who gave the invocation. Retired State Representative 

Richard Floyd led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-8 A RESOLUTION TO CLARIFY THE COMPENSATION OF 

THE CHAIRMAN AND CHAIRMAN PRO TEMPORE OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND TO CORRECT THE COMPENSATION PAID TO 

SAID PREVIOUS COMMISSION OFFICERS.   

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-8.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

amend Resolution No. 916-8 by accepting Commissioner Fields’ recommendations 

distributed to the Commission and filed with the County Clerk’s office. 

 

Commissioner Fields explained the proposed amendment and noted it rescinds 

Resolution No. 990-1 and  the compensation of the Chairman and Chairman Pro 

Tempore be set at a flat rate $5,000/$2,500 in addition to the Commissioner’s annual 

base rate. He also noted that percentage adjustments in the future would only apply to 

the Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore’s base rate, not the additional $5,000/$2,500.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 3 

Commissioner Mackey asked that the commission consider postponing the 

resolution until next week. 

 

Attorney Taylor recommended that the commission deliberate and consider the 

resolution today. He noted the Election of Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore are 

next on the agenda and the Finance Department needs direction and guidelines 

regarding salary. 

 

In response to Commissioner Smedley’s request, Commissioner Fields explained 

that No. 5 listed on the proposed amendment is replacing paragraph No. 3 on 

Resolution No. 916-8. 

 

In response to Commissioner Fairbanks question, Attorney Taylor stated that it 

was his understanding that the Commission in 1999 felt that $5,000/$2,500 (06-21-99 

Letter from Chairman Adams) was sufficient compensation for the extra duties required 

of the Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore.  

 

In response to Commissioner Fairbanks request, Attorney Taylor, Al Kiser, 

Administrator of Finance stated they were not familiar with the Commission’s reasoning 

regarding Resolution No. 990-1, adopted September 5, 1990. Clerk Knowles was asked 

for his recollection. He stated his understanding was that the supplement was for 

compensation pertaining to extra duties involved in the leadership roles. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 4 

Commissioner Fairbanks questioned rescinding a prior commission’s adopted 

resolution and stated his concerns for setting precedence.  

 

In response to Commission Fairbanks concerns, Attorney Taylor stated that the 

Commission has the authority to change any previous action. He reiterated that 

Commissioner Fields’ proposed amendment rescinds Resolution No. 990-1 and kicks 

back in place the 1999 Act, which was an act of the Commission in 1999 (Resolution 

No. 599-50A).  

 

Commissioner Boyd pointed out that Resolution No. 990-1 was adopted 20 years 

ago and the annual base pay then was low, and a 40% / 30% pay supplement increase 

for Chairman/Chairman Pro Tempore wasn’t astronomical. He emphasized that 

Hamilton County has vastly grown since 1990 and the responsibilities of the 

commission have increased significantly. He stated that the commission’s current salary 

does not adequately reflect time and effort that members of the commission now spend 

in performing duties of an expanded county government.  

 

He referenced Chairman Adams’s 1999 Letter to the Commission and concluded 

that the commission received a substantial raise in 2000 and the letter fixed the 

Chairman/Chairman Pro Tempore supplement pay to a flat amount $5,000/$2,500 to 

keep the percentages (Res. No. 990-1) from getting out of kilter. He agreed that the 

capped flat amounts were reasonable and agreed with the 1999 letter. He stated his 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 5 

support for Commissioner Fields proposed amendments and noted he did not consult 

former Commissioner Curtis Adams. 

 

Commissioner Graham thanked the commission for the through discussion and 

stated that he had intentions of proposing an amendment today. He stated his support 

for Commission Fields’ amendment and stated it was similar to his and appreciated the 

capped flat amounts.  

 

Commissioner Mackey stated that he is not in line to be Chairman of Chairman 

Pro Tempore and noted the commission is the only body that can change the 

commission’s salary. He stated his opposition and explained that the proposed 

amendment limits the Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore compensation. 

 

Commissioner Smedley stated that before she signed the letter, which requested 

that law change to uncouple the Commissioners’ salary to the Mayor’s salary (See letter 

attached to Res. 1215-40). She reiterated that the intent of the letter was not to raise the 

pay of Commissioners. She questioned why lengthy conversation never took place 

when the commission received a salary increase in prior budgets. She pointed out that 

Commissioner Fairbanks simply asked a question, he did not state how he was going to 

vote.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 6 

Commissioner Fairbanks concluded that the 1999 letter supersede Resolution 

No. 990-1, which implied that the extra duties required of the Chairman and Chairman 

Pro Tempore were not valued as high in 1999 as they were in 1990. He stated that if the 

commission still values the Chairman/Chairman Pro Tempore positions at the same 

supplemental rate $5,000/$2,500, he would support the amendment.  

 

Commissioner Graham stated the commission’s pay has been raised several 

times since 1999 because every time general government got a county wide raise, the 

commission received the same increase.  

 

Commissioner Graham called for the vote on the motion made by Commissioner 

Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham to amend Resolution No. 916-8. 

 

The foregoing Motion to amend the resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Nay”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 8. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 6.  Total “Nay” votes – 2. 

 

 Commissioner Fields noted that he would be affected by the resolution since he 

served as Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore within the past six years. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 7 

 Attorney Taylor reminded the Commission that state law requires the County 

Commission to adopt salaries and there is no reason to abstain from voting.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham statement, Attorney Taylor clarified that 

the adopted amendment states percentage adjustments in the future would only apply 

to the Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore’s annual base rate, not the additional 

supplement pay $5,000/$2,500.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted as amended on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 8. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

  

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND CHAIRMAN PRO TEMPORE OF THE HAMILTON 

COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Chairman Bankston stated that the floor was open for nominations to elect a 

Chairman for the ensuing year. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 8 

 Commissioner Smedley nominated Commissioner Chester Bankston to serve as 

Chairman.   

 

 Commissioner Fields nominated Commissioner Joe Graham to serve as 

Chairman.   

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there were other nominations. There were none. 

 

County Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll on the nomination of Bankston and 

Graham to serve as Commission Chairman.  Commissioners voted as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Bankston”; Commissioner Beck, “Bankston”, Commissioner 

Boyd, “Bankston”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Bankston”; Commissioner Fields, 

“Graham”; Commissioner Graham, “Graham”; Commissioner Mackey, “Bankston”; and 

Commissioner Smedley, “Bankston”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes 

for Bankston– 6. Total votes for Graham – 2.   

 

OATH OF OFFICE FOR CHAIRMAN OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS 

 

Clerk Knowles administered the Oath of Office to Commissioner Chester 

Bankston who was elected Chairman for the ensuing year. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 9 

 Chairman Bankston took the seat as Chairman at this time.  He thanked the 

Commission for their support and stated he looked forward to serving in this capacity. 

 

Chairman Bankston opened the floor for nominations for Chairman Pro Tempore. 

 

 Commissioner Smedley nominated Commissioner Fairbanks to serve as 

Chairman Pro Tempore.   

 

Commissioner Mackey nominated Commissioner Beck to serve as Chairman Pro 

Tempore.   

 

Commissioner Graham nominated Commissioner Beck to serve as Chairman 

Pro Tempore.   

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there were other nominations. There were none. 

 

County Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll on the nomination of Randy Fairbanks 

and Greg Beck to serve as Commission Chairman Pro Tempore.  Commissioners voted 

as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Fairbanks”; Commissioner Beck, “Beck”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Fairbanks”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Fairbanks”; Commissioner 

Fields, “Beck”; Commissioner Graham, “Beck”; Commissioner Mackey, “Beck”; and 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 10 

Commissioner Smedley, “Fairbanks”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes 

for Fairbanks– 4. Total votes for Beck – 4.   

 

 Attorney Taylor stated that should the Chairman wishes to take a second roll call 

and if it ends in a tie, the current Chairman Pro Tempore will serve until a successor is 

elected.   

 

 Chairman Bankston asked Clerk Knowles to call roll vote again. 

 

County Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll on the nomination of Randy Fairbanks 

and Greg Beck to serve as Commission Chairman Pro Tempore.  Commissioners voted 

as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Fairbanks”; Commissioner Beck, “Beck”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Fairbanks”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Fairbanks”; Commissioner 

Fields, “Beck”; Commissioner Graham, “Beck”; Commissioner Mackey, “Beck”; and 

Commissioner Smedley, “Fairbanks”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes 

for Fairbanks– 4. Total votes for Beck – 4.   

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, that the 

minutes of the Recessed Meeting of August 10, 2016, the Agenda Preparation Session 

of August 10, 2016, and the Regular Meeting of August 17, 2016, be approved, treat 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 11 

same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 8. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

AMENDED TRUSTEE EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The amended Trustee excess fee report for June 2016 was submitted and made 

a matter of record. 

 

TRUSTEE’S MONTHLY REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s monthly report for July 2016 was submitted and made a matter of 

record.  

 

TRUSTEE’S EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s excess fee report for July 2016 was submitted and made a matter 

of record.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 12 

TRUSTEE’S UNAUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT 

 

 The Trustee’s unaudited financial report for fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 was 

submitted and made a matter of record. 

 

TRUSTEE UNPAID PROPERTY TAX LEVY 

  

The Trustee’s 2015 unpaid real property tax levy was submitted and made a 

matter of record. 

 

TRUSTEE UNAUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT (REVISED) 

 

The Trustee’s revised unaudited financial report for fiscal year ending June 30, 

2016 was submitted and made a matter of record. 

 

JUVENILE COURT CLERK’S REPORT 

 

The Juvenile Court Clerk’s report for June 2016 was submitted and made a 

matter of record. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 13 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-1 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 

NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, AND OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-1.  

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

 The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total 

present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Bankston noted that Resolution Nos. 916-2 through 916-11 were 

heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-2 A RESOLUTION TO CONFIRM THE APPOINTMENT BY 

THE COUNTY MAYOR OF CHRIS JACKSON AS DIRECTOR OF CORRECTIONS. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 14 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-2.   

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total 

present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.  

 

Mayor Coppinger thanked the Commission for their support and acknowledged 

Chris Jackson and his family in the audience.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-3 A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY 

THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE CARTER STREET 

CORPORATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR A TERM ENDING AUGUST 18, 2020. 

 

This resolution reappoints Reverend Paul McDaniel. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 15 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-3.  

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

 The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total 

present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-4 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO EAST 

LAKE NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

to adopt Resolution No. 916-4.   

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 16 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  

Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.  Commissioner Graham announced that 

he was present. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-5 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO UNITY 

PERFORMING ARTS FOUNDATION OF CHATTANOOGA IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE 

THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 

DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-5.   

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 17 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  

Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.  Commissioner Graham announced that 

he was present. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-6 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

THREE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED DOLLARS ($3,400.00) FROM BOND FUNDS 

TO PURCHASE A PAINT MACHINE FOR OOLTEWAH HIGH SCHOOL. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, 

to adopt Resolution No. 916-6.  

 

In response to Commissioner Beck’s request, Chairman Bankston stated he 

received approval from the Finance Department to use $3,400 in bond funds to 

purchase a paint machine for Ooltewah High School.  

 

In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Mayor Coppinger confirmed that 

there is a limit on bond money. Bond money is typically used for emergencies and big 

ticket purchases. Using bond monies frequently for small purchases could potentially 

have an effect on the county’s AAA bond rating. He stated the paint machine is a legal 

purchase but it is not a good practice going forward. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 18 

Chairman Bankston stated the paint machine will be used to paint stripes on 

each Ooltewah athletic field.  

 

In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question, Mayor Coppinger reiterated 

that in order for the commission to spend money on the school system it must be money 

that is bondable. She noted her support for Resolution No. 916-6. 

 

Commissioner Graham noted he was elected to be a conservative republican 

and he can’t support spending bond money on small ticket items. He agreed with 

Commissioner Beck’s comments and stated that while the expenditure from bond 

money is legal, it doesn’t mean it is the right thing to do. He stated the Department of 

Education’s maintenance staff recently told the commission that they were $240 million 

behind on building maintenance. He suggested Ooltewah High School have a 

fundraiser to raise the difference that Commissioner Bankston is short in discretionary 

bond funds. He strongly urged the commission to vote no. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks stated he saw this coming when discretionary funds 

were removed from the commission’s budget. He stated he was very conscious of 

spending bond funds wisely and the importance of our AAA bond rating.  He stated any 

time a commissioner disagrees two things are said, “It will hurt the county’s bond rating 

and/or increase taxes”. He noted his disapproval of using scare tactics such as this to 

govern. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 19 

 Commissioner Mackey noted that it was not the County Commission who 

neglect the schools; it was the Board of Education. He noted the excess classroom 

space not being used in his district and recommended the school system reconfigure 

their boundaries and fill the existing empty space. He stated that he looks forward to 

discussing discretionary money. 

 

Commissioner Smedley clarified that she knew the purchase was legal, she only 

questioned if the purchase met bond criteria.  

 

Commissioner Beck stated that he has left over discretionary bond money and 

suggested the resolution be amended to use his funds instead of the county’s line of 

credit. 

 

Mayor Coppinger explained that any Commissioner can make a request to the 

Mayor’s staff for a bondable project, and a Resolution would be put forward for 

Commission consideration. He noted the only difference is that the funds are no longer 

coming from Commissioner’s discretionary money account, but is still taxpayer’s money. 

He added that it does not take discretionary money to complete necessary projects or 

enhance the quality of life in Hamilton County. He emphasized that no one will be 

deprived of any needed project.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 20 

Commissioner Fairbanks stated that each Commissioner knows the best interest 

of his or her district. He stated that he spent $13,000 out of his discretionary money to 

purchases an emergency rescue vehicle for Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department, and 

that purchase has already saved one life. He expressed his concern about not having 

those discretionary funds to spend on those types of projects. He added that he will 

always make decisions that are in the best interest of maintaining the County’s AAA 

bond rating.  

 

Mayor Coppinger stated that those types of projects are still given priority; the 

only difference is the account that funds a specific project.  

 

 The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Nay”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Nay”; Commissioner Graham, “Nay”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total 

present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 5.  Total “Nay” votes – 3.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-7 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO AWARD FIVE (5) DAYS OF PAID LEAVE FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

ENCOURAGING ALL HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEES TO PARTICIPATE IN THE 

UNITED WAY CAMPAIGN THROUGH PAYROLL DEDUCTION. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 21 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-7.   

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total 

present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-9 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

RENEW THE UNIT PRICE CONTRACT WITH CHATTANOOGA FUNERAL HOME, 

CREMATORY AND FLORIST TO PROVIDE CREMATION SERVICES FOR THE 

RENEWAL CONTRACT PERIOD BEGINNING SEPTEMBER 4, 2016 AND ENDING 

SEPTEMBER 3, 2019. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-9.   

 

Mayor Coppinger reminded members of the Commission that this year’s budget 

per cremation increased to $375.00. He thanked Gene Pike, President of Chattanooga 

Funeral Home, for taking on this responsibility.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 22 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total 

present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-10 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR 

THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE REVOLVING 

CREDIT AGREEMENT DATED SEPTEMBER 1, 2013 WITH U.S. BANK NATIONAL 

ASSOCIATION; AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS RELATED 

THERETO. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-10.   

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total 

present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 23 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-11 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE OFFER OF LEE-

SMITH, INC. FOR TWO (2) TANDEM AXLE CHASSIS WITH ROLL-OFF HOIST 

AMOUNTING TO $75,000.00 FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-11.   

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total 

present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 916-12 through 916-19 be 

considered at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-12 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF G.T. 

DISTRIBUTORS, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2016, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 7, 2017, FOR SAFARILAND BODY 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 24 

ARMOR FOR THE SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution No. 916-12, and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-12.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Commissioner 

Beck was absent for the roll call. Total present – 7.  Total absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes 

– 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-13 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF 

FOUR (4) LIFEPAK 15 V4 CARDIAC MONITOR/DEFIBRILLATORS AND SUPPLIES 

AMOUNTING TO $142,755.47 FROM PHYSIO CONTROL, INC. FOR EMERGENCY 

MEDICAL SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 25 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution No. 916-13, and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-13.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Bankston, “Aye. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-14 A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2016, THROUGH 

JULY 31, 2016, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution No. 916-14, and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 26 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-14.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Bankston, “Aye. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Boyd asked that Resolution Nos. 916-15 through 916-17 be 

considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-15 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $15,400.00 WITH THE 

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO PROVIDE EMERGENCY DENTAL 

CARE FOR UNINSURED ADULTS AGES 19 - 64 YEARS FOR THE TIME PERIOD 

JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017; INCREASING THE EXPENSE AND 

REVENUE BUDGET BY $7,390.00. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 27 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-16 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTINUATION GRANT-IN-AID CONTRACT FOR 

$351,494.00 WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO SUPPORT 

THE DELIVERY OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2016 

- JUNE 30, 2017. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-17 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN AN ENDOWMENT GRANT CONTRACT WITH THE 

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO PROVIDE HEALTH CARE SAFETY 

NET PRIMARY CARE SERVICES IN HAMILTON COUNTY FOR THE TIME PERIOD 

JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017, IN THE AMOUNT OF $131,560.00; AND 

TO INCREASE THE EXPENSE AND REVENUE BUDGET BY $15,340.00. 

 

 Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 916-15 through 916-17, and stated that the Finance 

Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 28 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 916-15 through 916-17.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  

Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-18 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO PROVIDE PRIMARY CARE SERVICES TO 

UNINSURED ADULTS AGES 19 - 64 YEARS AT THE BIRCHWOOD HEALTH 

CENTER FOR THE TIME PERIOD JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $15,000.00. 

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution No. 916-18, and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 29 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-18.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Bankston, “Aye. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-19 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF DISCOUNT 

FORKLIFT FOR ONE (1) 5,000 LB LIFT CAPACITY DIESEL POWERED FORK LIFT 

AMOUNTING TO $23,496.00 FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution No. 916-19, and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-19.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 30 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Bankston, “Aye. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 916-20 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" BY CHANGING THE SPEED LIMITS OF VILLAGE 

WAY DRIVE, WEST VILLAGE LANE, AND EAST VILLAGE LANE FROM 30 MILES 

PER HOUR TO 20 MILES PER HOUR, WEST OF DENT ROAD, NORTH. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 916-20.   

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

  

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye. Total 

present – 8.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 31 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 

Commissioner Graham announced that on September 10th, the Lookout Valley 

Lions Club will be holding its annual golf tournament at the Trenton Golf Club. He 

reported that 100% of the proceeds are used to provide food, toys, and gifts for children 

and families at Christmas. He stated that Commissioner Fields and former 

Commissioner Marty Haynes will also be participating in the golf tournament.  

 

Commissioner Graham congratulated Commissioner Bankston on being elected 

to a second term as Chairman of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Fields announced that the Hamilton County Records Committee 

will be meeting on September 21st at 8:00 am in the Commission Conference Room. He 

encouraged everyone to attend.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks congratulated Chris Jackson on his new appointment 

as Director of Corrections.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 32 

Commissioner Beck congratulated Commissioner Bankston on his election as 

Chairman of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Beck spoke at length about an editorial that appeared in the 

Chattanooga Times Free Press regarding Commission salaries. He pointed out several 

statements printed in the article that were not true, including the claim that he served as 

Chairman within the last six years. He stated that he wished to set the record straight 

publicly regarding the misinformation published in the article. A copy of the article is filed 

with the Clerk’s office. 

 

Mayor Coppinger congratulated Commissioner Bankston on his election as 

Chairman of the Commission. 

 

Chairman Bankston thanked fellow Commissioners for electing him to serve a 

second term as Chairman of the Commission.   

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There was 

no one. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 33 

There being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, September 14, 2016 at 9:30 AM.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

      
____________________________________    

     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 





No. 916- 21 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, THE BOND AND OATH OF 
ASSESSOR OF PROPERTY, THE OATHS OF DEPUTY ASSESSORS OF 
PROPERTY, THE OATHS OF MEMBERS OF THE HAMILTON 
COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION, THE BOND OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT AND 
THE OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS. 

   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the person 

named on the attached listing labeled “THE BOND AND OATH OF 
ASSESSOR OF PROPERTY” has given approved bond for the office of Notary 
Public and has taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 
ASSESSORS OF PROPERTY” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
 
 



WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 
persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATHS OF MEMBERS 
OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCAITON” have taken the 
oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the person 

named on the attached listing labeled “THE BOND OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT” has 
submitted for filing a bond required in TCA Section 7-86-119; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the attached listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2. That the persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE 

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position 
of Notary Public are hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the 
oaths therefor are approved as taken; and 

 
3. That the person named on the attached listing labeled “THE BOND AND OATH 

OF ASSESSOR OF PROPERTY” is accepted and the bond and oath therefor 
are approved as taken; and 

 
4. That the persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 

ASSESSORS OF PROPERTY” are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
approved as taken; and 

 
5. That the persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATHS OF 

MEMBERS OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION” 
are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and 

 
 
 



 

 

6. That the person named on the attached listing labeled “THE BOND OF 
HAMILTON COUNTY 911 EMERGECNY COMMUNICATIONS 
DISTRICT” is accepted and the oath therefor is approved as taken; and 

 
7. That the persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFFS” are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and 
 

8. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 



































































No. 916-22 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO HIGHLAND PARK NEIGHBORHOOD 
ASSOCIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Highland Park 
Neighborhood Association to assist with their art program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be 
appropriated to Highland Park Neighborhood Association to assist with their art program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 









No. 916-23 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ENTERING  INTO  OF A CONTRACT 
BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, AND THE TENNESSEE VALLEY 
AUTHORITY (“TVA”) FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
SERVICES DEPARTMENT TO RESPOND TO EMERGENCIES AT TVA’S 
RACCOON MOUNTAIN PUMP STORAGE PLANT. 
 

WHEREAS,    the Tennessee Valley Authority (“TVA”) operates the Raccoon  
   Mountain Pump Storage Plant (“facility”), which is partially  
   located within Marion County; and  
 
WHEREAS,  TVA has approached Hamilton County (“County”) requesting 

that the County and TVA enter into an agreement whereby the 
County will provide its Emergency Medical Services 
Department to respond to TVA-related medical emergencies that 
may occur within said facility’s site; and  

 
WHEREAS,   the County is willing and able to provide said emergency 

medical services at said facility under the terms and conditions 
as outlined in the attached Contract to be entered into between 
said Parties; and  

 
WHEREAS,  it is the opinion of this county legislative body that the entering 

into of said Contract and the providing of said emergency 
medical service is in the best interest of the citizens of Hamilton 
County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the entering into of the attached Contract for the providing of emergency medical 
services by the Hamilton County Emergency Medical Services Department as may be 



 

 

needed at the Tennessee Valley Authority’s Raccoon Mountain Pump Storage Plant is 
hereby approved, and the County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute said Contract. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 



Page 1 of 4 
 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 
CONTRACT NO. __________ 

 
 

CONTRACT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
AT THE TVA RACCOON MOUNTAIN PUMP STORAGE PLANT 

 
 This Contract for Emergency Medical Services at TVA Raccoon Mountain Pump Storage 
(this “Contract”) is made by and between the Tennessee Valley Authority (“TVA”) and Hamilton 
County, Tennessee, on behalf of its Emergency Medical Services (herein collectively referred to as 
“Department”) (collectively “the Parties”). 
 
 WHEREAS TVA desires emergency medical services at its TVA Raccoon Mountain 
Pump Storage Facility and all physical facilities owned or operated at such location by TVA (the 
“Plant”); and 
 

WHEREAS Department provides emergency medical services; and 
 
  WHEREAS Department is willing and able to provide emergency medical services at the 
Plant; and  
 
 WHEREAS the Department is hereby approved or designated as the host agency for 
emergency medical services for the Plant; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

I. EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
 

A. When, in the judgment of TVA, circumstances require emergency medical personnel, 
vehicles, and equipment to provide emergency medical services at the Plant, TVA may 
call upon Department to send such emergency medical personnel, vehicles, and 
equipment and Department shall, to the extent it is able, respond to TVA’s request for 
such services.   
 

B. Notwithstanding Paragraph A above, Department may, after consideration of all relevant 
facts, withhold sending and/or withdraw emergency medical personnel, vehicles, and/or 
equipment if the highest ranking emergency medical official reasonably determines such 
action is necessary to not jeopardize the overall protection of the jurisdiction served by 
Department.  In such situations, TVA expects a fair appraisal of the situation and an 
appropriate response.  If and when Department is unable to comply with TVA’s requests 
for emergency medical services, the highest ranking emergency medical official shall 
promptly notify TVA of its decision.  
 

C. Response times, from the time Department receives a request for emergency medical  
services at the Plant until the first vehicle arrives at the Plant, shall not exceed 25 minutes 



Page 2 of 4 
 

except in situations where inclement weather, traffic conditions or other events beyond 
Department’s control cause a delay. 

 
D. As part of the Emergency medical Services provided under this Contract, Department 

shall, at mutually agreed upon times, participate in annual  tours to familiarize itself with 
the Plant and any additional training sessions, drills, and exercises as agreed upon by the 
Parties.  
 

E. Department shall maintain in effect any necessary certifications and licenses – federal, 
state, local and otherwise - for the provision of Emergency medical Services and shall 
ensure all employees of Department fulfill any applicable licensing requirements. 

 
II. PAYMENT 

 
A. TVA shall reimburse Department for Emergency Medical Services at the Plant as per the 

standard Hamilton County Emergency Medical Service schedule of rates. 
 

B. To receive reimbursement from TVA, Department shall submit detailed, certified 
invoices that include the contract number and any applicable purchase order numbers, the 
type of service provided to TVA, the date of such service, and a breakdown of costs 
incurred for personnel, equipment, and materials.  Time spent performing Emergency 
Medical Services shall be rounded to the next whole hour and shall start at the time of 
arrival at the Plant and terminate when TVA instructs the responding personnel to return 
to their stations.  Department is not required to submit a specific form as its invoice, but 
all invoices shall include the information requested above.  Failure to provide any of the 
requested information may result in a delay of payment of such invoice. Invoices that 
request reimbursement of expendable materials shall be supported by documentation that 
reflects the actual costs incurred by Department, such as receipts of purchase. 
 
Invoices shall be sent to Accounts Payable via e-mail to accountspayable@tva.gov or via 
regular mail to: 

 
Tennessee Valley Authority 
Accounts Payable 
P.O. Box 15500 
Knoxville, TN 37901 

 
TVA shall, within 45 days of receiving a detailed, certified invoice, reimburse 
Department for services provided to TVA in accordance with the rates set out in this 
Contract.   
 

C. No minimum amount of work under this Contract is guaranteed.  
  

 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

III. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Personnel and equipment dispatched in response to a request from TVA shall operate 
under the immediate supervision and control of the senior emergency medical official in 
charge of the dispatched personnel and equipment and under the general direction of 
TVA’s senior incident commander on duty at the scene of the emergency.  
 

B. Department may, in execution of the terms of this Contract, involve other emergency 
response organizations through mutual-aid agreements, automatic-aid agreements, or 
subcontracts, or any applicable mutual-aid and emergency/disaster assistance statutes 
available at law.  If such other parties are used, they shall be under Department’s control 
and, for purposes of this Contract, be considered units of Department. In the event such 
other parties are utilized pursuant to this section, then upon Department providing 
appropriate documentation to TVA as provided in Section II.B above, TVA will pay or 
reimburse Department for such utilization. 
 

C. TVA shall have the duty to defend and hold harmless Department from and against any 
claim, demand, cause of action, liability, damages, judgment, or loss of whatever kind or 
nature, resulting from personal injury, including death, or property damage, where such 
injury, death, or damage (1) occurs on the Plant premises or to the extent that TVA’s 
assistance and expertise shall be requested by Department on an as-needed, mutual-aid 
basis for any technical rescue or emergency response incident occurring outside the Plant 
premises for which TVA can adequately provide such assistance and expertise,  and (2) 
arises out of or results from the sole negligence of TVA or its agents and employees.  
 

D. Neither Department nor any other person performing services under this Contract other 
than an actual employee of TVA shall be considered an agent or employee of the United 
States or TVA.  Further, the United States of America, TVA, and their agents and 
employees assume no liability to Department or any third party for any damages to 
property, both real and personal, or personal injuries, including death, arising out of or in 
any way connected with the acts or omissions of Department or any other persons. 
 

E. No member of or delegate to Congress, resident commissioner, or any officer, employee, 
special government employee, or agent of TVA or Department shall be entitled to any 
share or part of this Contract or to any benefit that may arise there from, but this 
provision shall not be construed to extend to a corporation or unit of government 
contracting for the benefit of itself or the public.   
 

F. This Contract is effective upon full execution by both Parties.  The Contract shall be for 
20 years from the date of execution.  This Contract term shall not be extended or deemed 
to be extended except pursuant to a fully executed written amendment to the Contract.  If 
either party wishes to terminate the contract prior to the end date, the terminating party 
must provide 30 days written notice to the other party.     
 

G. By entering into this Contract, Department certifies that it and its employees meet all 
requirements to provide Emergency medical Services, including but not limited to 



Page 4 of 4 
 

licensure and training. 
 

H. This Contract is intended as a final expression of the Parties' agreement and as a complete 
and exclusive statement of the terms thereof. This Contract shall supersede all prior 
understandings, oral and written, between the Parties. This Contract may not be modified, 
altered, or changed except by a written amendment signed by all Parties hereto.  
 
 

 
HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE          TENNESSEE VALLEY AUTHORITY 
GOVERNMENT 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Name       Name 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Date       Date 
 
 



No. 916-24 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO WANT TO FOUNDATION, INC., IN THE 
AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT EIGHT. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Tim Boyd has expressed a desire to allocate Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Want To Foundation, Inc., to 
assist with their mentoring program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Want To Foundation, Inc., to assist with their mentoring program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 







No. 916-25 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPLYING TO THE FEDERAL LANDS ACCESS PROGRAM (FLAP) AND 
ACCEPTING REIMBURSEMENT TO RESURFACE AND UPGRADE GUARDRAILS ON 
SEQUOYAH ACCESS ROAD FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 

  
WHEREAS, the project consists of resurfacing and restriping 4.1 miles of Sequoyah Access Road 

and replacement of 12,843 feet of guardrail with 40 end treatments; and,  
                    
WHEREAS, total project estimate will be $1,500,000, 80% funded by the Federal Lands Access 

Program (FLAP) and 20% funded from the requesting department; and, 
 
WHEREAS,     there are sufficient funds available for this road improvement from the requesting 
                         department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Mayor is authorized to apply to the Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) and accept 
reimbursement to resurface and upgrade guardrails on Sequoyah Access Road and sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 916-26 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE SCHOOLS FEDERAL PROJECTS FUND BUDGET 
BY ADDING $484,610 TO THE FY 2016-2017 BUDGET; TO AMEND THE SELF-
FUNDED PROJECTS FUND BUDGET BY APPROPRIATING FUND BALANCE OF 
$130,580 AND ADDITIONAL REVENUE OF $881 TO THE FY 2016-2017 BUDGET; TO 
AMEND THE GENERAL PURPOSE FUND BUDGET BY APPROPRIATING FUND 
BALANCE OF $3,485,000 AND ADDITIONAL REVENUE OF $347,000 TO THE FY 
2016-2017 BUDGET  
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education has additional carryover funds of 

$235,881 and was awarded additional revenue of $248,729 from various state 
and federal agencies, and desires to use it for the designated purposes; and, 

 
WHEREAS,    the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of a self-funded 

budget amendment appropriating fund balance of $130,580 and setting forth 
additional revenue from various non-federal agencies or donations totaling 
$881; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of a general 

purpose operating budget amendment appropriating fund balance of $3,485,000 
and setting forth additional revenue of $347,000; and, 

 
WHEREAS,    the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of budget  

amendments appropriating fund balance, additional revenue and expenses and 
transfers of expenditures from one category to another; and, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the county school federal projects fund be hereby amended by adding $484,610 for the 
following items: 
           
 



Source of Funds                                                                          Amount 
Deferred Revenue          $    200,000 
State Revenue                                5,000 
Federal Thru State                279,610 
Total            $    484,610
  
Use of Funds 
Regular Instruction                                                                            $       30,588 
Special Education Instruction                 60,630 
Vocational Instruction                  60,780 
Health Services                            573 
Regular Instruction Support               291,278 
Special Education Support                 20,841 
Transportation                                              17,000 
Indirect Costs                                                                                     2,920  
Total                                                                   $     484,610 
 
 
That the county school self-funded projects fund be hereby amended by adding $131,461 for 
the following items: 
 
Source of Funds 
Restricted for Education Fund Balance            $     130,580 
Other Local Revenues                       881 
Total                      $     131,461
  
Use of Funds 
Regular Instruction                    $     100,000 
Special Education Instruction                      500 
Vocational Education Instruction                  4,500 
Other Student Support                      755 
Regular Instruction Support                           5,160 
Maintenance of Plant                  13,086 
Central and Other                    7,460 
Total                                                    $     131,461 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

That the county general purpose school fund be hereby amended by adding $3,832,000 for the 
following items: 
 
Source of Funds 
Unassigned Fund Balance         $ 3,485,000 
State Education Funds               347,000 
Total            $ 3,832,000 
                       
Use of Funds  
Regular Instruction Support                                                                                        $      40,000 
Director of Schools                      85,000 
Operation of Plant                        2,000,000 
Maintenance of Plant                222,000 
Transfers                         1,485,000 
Total             $3,832,000 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 















No. 916-27A 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                        (P.C. NO. 2016-112) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 10317, 10327 AND 10331 EAST 

BRAINERD ROAD 
 
 
 WHEREAS,  Pratt Land and Development, LLC & Murphy Family Trust petitioned the 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to rezone from  A-1 Agricultural District 
to R-1 Single Family Residential District, properties located at 10317, 10327 and 10331 East Brainerd 
Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Pratt Land and Development, LLC & Murphy Family Trust requested that the 
County Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on September 21, 
2016, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such hearing having been 
held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to rezone from 
A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, properties located at 10317, 10327 
and 10331 East Brainerd Road.  Three unplatted tracts of land located at 10317, 10327 and 10331 
East Brainerd Road as described in Deed Book 5035, Page 550, Deed Book 9004, Page 888 and 
Deed Book 10436, Page 929, ROHC.  Tax Map 173-002, 002.02 and Tax Map 172-096 as shown on 
the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 













No. 916-27B 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                        (P.C. NO. 2016-112) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 10317, 10327 AND 10331 EAST 

BRAINERD ROAD 
 
 
 WHEREAS,  Pratt Land and Development, LLC & Murphy Family Trust petitioned the 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to rezone from  A-1 Agricultural District 
to R-1 Single Family Residential District, properties located at 10317, 10327 and 10331 East Brainerd 
Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Pratt Land and Development, LLC & Murphy Family Trust requested that the 
County Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on September 21, 
2016, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such hearing having been 
held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to rezone, 
subject to a Traffic Analysis Study to be provided to the Hamilton County Engineer before the 
Hamilton County Commission meeting, from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family 
Residential District, properties located at 10317, 10327 and 10331 East Brainerd Road.  Three 
unplatted tracts of land located at 10317, 10327 and 10331 East Brainerd Road as described in Deed 
Book 5035, Page 550, Deed Book 9004, Page 888 and Deed Book 10436, Page 929, ROHC.  Tax 
Map 173-002, 002.02 and Tax Map 172-096 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 













No. 916-28 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                        (P.C. NO. 2016-113) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS PERMIT 
FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR 
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 10317, 10327 AND 10331 EAST 

BRAINERD ROAD 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Pratt Land and Development, LLC & Murphy Family Trust petitioned the 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to grant a Special Exceptions Permit for 
a Residential Planned Unit Development for properties located at 10317, 10327 and 10331 East 
Brainerd Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be 
approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Pratt Land and Development, LLC & Murphy Family Trust requested that the 
County Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on September 21, 
2016, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such hearing having been 
held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended granting a 
Special Exceptions Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development for properties located at 10317, 
10327 and 10331 East Brainerd Road.  Three unplatted tracts of land located at 10317, 10327 and 
10331 East Brainerd Road as described in Deed Book 5035, Page 550, Deed Book 9004, Page 888 
and Deed Book 10436, Page 929, ROHC.  Tax Map 173-002, 002.02 and Tax Map 172-096 as shown 
on the attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 















No. 916-29 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                     (P.C. NO. 2016-115) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO C-3 GENERAL BUSINESS 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8875 
HIGHWAY 58 

 
 
 WHEREAS, David Yost petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning 
Commission to rezone from  R-2A Rural Residential District to C-3 General Business 
Commercial District, property located at 8875 Highway 58, and said Planning Commission afte  
hearing recommended that this petition be denied; and 
 
 WHEREAS, David Yost requested that the County Commission consider said petition 
and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County tha  
the County Commission will hold a public hearing on September 21, 2016, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such hearing having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to C-3 General Business Commercial District  
property located at 8875 Highway 58.  An unplatted tract of land located at 8875 Highway 58 
being the property described in Deed Book 10775, Page 348, ROHC.  Tax Map 085-037.04 as 
shown on the attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 















No. 916-30 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                 (P.C. NO. 2016-116) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR A 
SHORT TERM VACATION RENTAL FOR PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 6308 BAY LANE 
 
 
 WHEREAS, William and Gloria Banks petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to grant a Special Permit for a Short Term Vacation Rental fo  
property located at 6308 Bay Lane, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended 
that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, William and Gloria Banks requested that the County Commission conside  
said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton 
County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on September 21, 2016  
concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such hearing having been 
held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended 
granting a Special Permit for a Short Term Vacation Rental for property located at 6308 Bay 
Lane.  Parts of Lots 3 and 4, Revision of Lots 3 and 4, Corrective Plat Moon Subdivision, Pla  
Book 28, Page 107, ROHC, Deed Book 9606, Page 986, ROHC.  Tax Map 093L-A-033 as 
shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 













No. 916-31 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                 (P.C. NO. 2016-118) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9120 LOVELL ROAD 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Tidewater Properties, LLC c/o Jay Bell and Jamie Sharpe Trustee c/o 
Larry Sharpe petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to 
rezone from  A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, property 
located at 9120 Lovell Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that 
this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Tidewater Properties, LLC c/o Jay Bell and Jamie Sharpe Trustee c/o 
Larry Sharpe requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has 
been published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County 
Commission will hold a public hearing on September 21, 2016, concerning the passage of this 
Resolution as required by law, and such hearing having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, property located 
at 9120 Lovell Road.  All that part of an unplatted tract of land located at 9120 Lovell Road 
that is currently zoned A-1 being the property described in Deed Book 10587, Page 625, 
ROHC.  Tax Map 066M-D-013 (part) as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 













No. 916-32A 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                 (P.C. NO. 2016-119) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO C-3 GENERAL BUSINESS 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 5007 
AND 5011 ORCHARD DRIVE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Wind River Tiny Homes c/o Jeremy Weaver and William & Linda 
Hullander      petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to 
rezone from  R-2A Rural Residential District to C-3 General Business Commercial District, 
properties located at 5007 and 5011 Orchard Drive, and said Planning Commission after 
hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Wind River Tiny Homes c/o Jeremy Weaver and William & Linda 
Hullander                                    requested that the County Commission consider said petition 
and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that 
the County Commission will hold a public hearing on September 21, 2016, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such hearing having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to C-3 General Business Commercial District, 
properties located at 5007 and 5011 Orchard Drive.  Two unplatted tracts of land located at 
5011 Orchard Drive, being the properties described in Deed Book 10535, Page 671, ROHC.  
Tax Map 151-028 and Tax Map 161-068 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 

















No. 916-32B 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                                  (P.C. NO. 2016-119) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT TO C-3 GENERAL BUSINESS COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, 

PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 5007 AND 5011 ORCHARD DRIVE 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Wind River Tiny Homes c/o Jeremy Weaver and William & Linda Hullander      
petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to rezone from  R-2A 
Rural Residential District to C-3 General Business Commercial District, properties located at 5007 and 
5011 Orchard Drive, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be 
approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Wind River Tiny Homes c/o Jeremy Weaver and William & Linda Hullander                                    
requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a 
newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public 
hearing on September 21, 2016, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and 
such hearing having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to rezone, 
subject to the following conditions:  (1) A type ‘B’ Landscape buffer shall be required along 
Orchard Drive.  Only to be interrupted by an ingress/egress point. (2) Any outdoor storage of 
equipment or merchandise shall be limited to thirty percent (30%) of the lot square footage, 
excluding the area where buildings are located; such area shall be contained by fence, a 
minimum of six (6) feet high, and shall not encroach upon the required parking area. (3) Point of 
access to the site shall be located at the southeastern most point of Orchard Drive, parallel to 
railroad.  Traffic to and from the site will not head west on Orchard Drive. (4) Limit the use for 
these parcels to Single-family dwellings or any light manufacturing which:  (a) is not noxious or 
offensive by reason of emission of odor, fumes, dust, smoke, noise or vibration; (b) does not 
use mechanical power in excess of 5-horsepower; (c) does not habitually employ more than 5 
mechanics or workers. (5) Hours of Operation shall be no earlier than 7:00am and no later than 
7:00pm. from R-2A Rural Residential District to C-3 General Business Commercial District, properties 
located at 5007 and 5011 Orchard Drive.  Two unplatted tracts of land located at 5011 Orchard Drive, 
being the properties described in Deed Book 10535, Page 671, ROHC.  Tax Map 151-028 and Tax 
Map 161-068 as shown on the attached map. 
 



 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 

















No. 916-33 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A DONATION OF AN AUTOMATIC EXTERNAL 
DEFIBRILATOR (AED) WITH AN ESTIMATED RETAIL VALUE OF $1,795 FROM THE 
FIREHOUSE SUBS PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County recognizes the important contributions of the Firehouse Subs 
Public Safety Foundation who has seen a need to supply local law enforcement medical 
supplies that may be needed at a later date; and 
 
WHEREAS, the retail value of such equipment is estimated at $1,795; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office of Hamilton County will pay nothing, nor promise any favors 
in consideration of this donation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
To accept the donation of the AED and associated equipment with an estimated retail value of $1,795 
to the Sheriff’s Office from the Firehouse Subs Public Safety Foundation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 916-34 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO RELINQUISH HAMILTON COUNTY’S INTEREST IN A 1991 
FORD F-250 TRUCK CO-TITLED WITH SALE CREEK FIRE & RESCUE UPON 
CERTAIN TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 
 
WHEREAS, the 1991 Ford F-250 Truck, Tag # GX-4622, VIN # 1FTHF26M1MNA39602,      
                        currently titled to Hamilton County and Sale Creek Fire & Rescue has  
                        become uneconomical to maintain: and, 
 
WHEREAS, Sale Creek Fire & Rescue desires that said vehicles be declared surplus and  
                        sold, and when sold, the proceeds there from used towards the acquisition of  
                        firefighting equipment for Sale Creek Fire & Rescue and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Agent and Director of Emergency Services concur in the surplus   
                        status and desired disposition as set forth above; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Hamilton County does hereby relinquish its interest in the subject vehicle to Sale Creek 
Fire & Rescue; and the County Director of Purchasing is hereby authorized to convey the 
certificate of title of said vehicle, upon the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. That  Hamilton County’s interest in said vehicles shall be conveyed to Sale Creek 
Fire & Rescue under a written agreement specifying in a conspicuous manner that 
the conveyance is made without warranties of merchantability or fitness for a 
particular purpose or any other warranties (except of title) and further specifying 
that the interest in said vehicles is accepted by Sale Creek Fire & Rescue in an “as 
is” condition, and, 

 
2. That, if sold by Sale Creek Fire & Rescue, said vehicles be sold in a commercially 

reasonable manner and the proceeds applied to the purchase of firefighting 



 

 

equipment by Sale Creek Fire & Rescue. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 916-35 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF AUGUST 1, 2016, THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2016, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between August 1, 2016, through August 31, 2016.  
 
 August 1, 2016, $9,618.70 for 7,852 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.2250 per gallon from 

Collins Oil Company, Inc.  
 
 August 2, 2016, $10,640.93 for 8,334 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.27681 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 August 2, 2016, $9,390.78 for 7,413 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.2667988 per gallon 

from Pilot Travel Centers, LLC.  
 
 August 11, 2016, $9,210.61 for 7,342 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.25451 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants.  
  
 August 11, 2016, $3,819.23 for 2,461 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.5519 

per gallon from Lykins Energy Solutions.  
 
 August 12, 2016, $1,966.15 for 1,188 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.655005 

per gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 August 17, 2016, $1,181.42 for 697 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.6950 per 

gallon from Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
 
 August 24, 2016, $10,783.65 for 7,437 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.4500 per gallon 

from Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
 



 

 

 August 24, 2016, $11,502.49 for 7,474 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.5390 per gallon from 
Collins Oil Company, Inc. 

 
 August 29, 2016, $11,694.15 for 7,939 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.4730 per gallon 

from Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
 
 August 30, 2016, $11,806.73 for 8,351 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.41381 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 August 31, 2016, $11,427.07 for 8,336 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.37081 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 August 31, 2016, $11,307.82 for 8,249 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.370811 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 







No. 916-36 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO ACCEPT A CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT  WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FOR THE PROVISION 
OF WIC (WOMEN, INFANTS AND CHILDREN) FOR THE TIME PERIOD OCTOBER 1, 2015 TO 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,525,700.00 AND TO DECREASE THE EXPENSE 
AND REVENUE BUDGETS BY $9,900.00.                               
 
WHEREAS,  the overall objective of the Tennessee Department of Health’s Women, Infants 

and Children (WIC) program is to provide nutritional education and specific 
nutritious foods to low income women, infants and children who are 
determined to be income eligible and at nutritional risk; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the State Department of Health desires to continue contracting with the 

Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department for WIC services; and 
 
WHEREAS, this program and services are for the health and well being of the citizens of 

Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

 
That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract amendment accepting 
$6,525,700.00 for the purpose of providing WIC services for the time period October 1, 2015 
to September 30, 2019 and to decrease the expense and revenue budgets by $9,900.00.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 



  10-20-11 AMEND-G 

 

 

G R AN T  A M E N D M E N T  

Agency Tracking # Edison ID Contract # Amendment # 

34353-02215 43833 GG15-43833 1 

Contractor Legal Entity Name Edison Vendor ID 

Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department 4208 

Amendment Purpose & Effect(s) 

Revisions to State staff and budget for Fiscal Year 2017 

Amendment Changes Contract End Date:           YES     NO End Date:          September 30, 2018 

TOTAL Contract Amount INCREASE or DECREASE per this Amendment (zero if N/A): $ -$9,900 

Funding — 

FY State Federal Interdepartmental Other TOTAL Contract Amount 

2015       $1,302,478.60             $1,302,478.60 

2016       $1,556,846.40             $1,556,846.40 

2017       $1,624,000.00             $1,624,000.00 

2018       $1,633,900.00             $1,633,900.00 

2019       $408,475.00             $408,475.00 

TOTAL:       $6,525,700.00             $6,525,700.00 

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Funding:       YES     NO 

Budget Officer Confirmation:  There is a balance in the 
appropriation from which obligations hereunder are required 
to be paid that is not already encumbered to pay other 
obligations. 

OCR USE 

Speed Chart (optional) Account Code (optional) 

HL00007833 71301000 

 
 

 

 

 



  10-20-11 AMEND-G 
 

2 
 

AMENDMENT 1 
OF GRANT CONTRACT GG15-43833 

 
This Grant Contract Amendment is made and entered by and between the State of Tennessee, 
Department of Health, hereinafter referred to as the “State” and Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health 
Department, hereinafter referred to as the “Grantee.”  It is mutually understood and agreed by and 
between said, undersigned contracting parties that the subject Grant Contract is hereby amended as 
follows:  
 
1. Grant Contract section C.1. is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

C.1. Maximum Liability.  In no event shall the maximum liability of the State under this Grant 
Contract exceed Six Million Five Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars 
($6,525,700) (“Maximum Liability”).  The Grant Budget, attached and incorporated hereto 
as Attachment 2, shall constitute the maximum amount due the Grantee under this Grant 
Contract.  The Grant Budget line-items include, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, 
fees, overhead, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the 
Grantee. 

 
2. Grant Contract section C.5. is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 
 C.5. Invoice Requirements. The Grantee shall invoice the State no more often than monthly, 

with all necessary supporting documentation, and present such to: 
 
  Sabrina Clark, ASA 3 
  Supplemental Nutrition Program 

Division of Family Health and Wellness  
  Tennessee Department of Health 
  Andrew Johnson Tower, 8

th
 Floor 

  710 James Robertson Parkway 
  Nashville, TN  37243 

Email Address: Sabrina.Clark@tn.gov 
 
a. Each invoice shall clearly and accurately detail all of the following required information 

(calculations must be extended and totaled correctly). 
 
(1) Invoice/Reference Number (assigned by the Grantee). 
(2) Invoice Date. 
(3) Invoice Period (to which the reimbursement request is applicable). 
(4) Grant Contract Number (assigned by the State).  
(5) Grantor:  Department of Health, Division of Family Health and Wellness.  
(6) Grantor Number (assigned by the Grantee to the above-referenced Grantor). 
(7) Grantee Name.  
(8) Grantee Tennessee Edison Registration ID Number Referenced in Preamble of 

this Grant Contract. 
(9) Grantee Remittance Address. 
(10) Grantee Contact for Invoice Questions (name, phone, and/or fax). 
(11) Itemization of Reimbursement Requested for the Invoice Period— it must detail, 

at minimum, all of the following:  
 
i. The amount requested by Grant Budget line-item (including any travel 

expenditure reimbursement requested and for which documentation and 



  10-20-11 AMEND-G 
 

3 
 

receipts, as required by "State Comprehensive Travel Regulations," are 
attached to the invoice). 

ii. The amount reimbursed by Grant Budget line-item to date. 
iii. The total amount reimbursed under the Grant Contract to date.  
iv. The total amount requested (all line-items) for the Invoice Period. 
 

b. The Grantee understands and agrees to all of the following. 
 
(1) An invoice under this Grant Contract shall include only reimbursement requests 

for actual, reasonable, and necessary expenditures required in the delivery of 
service described by this Grant Contract and shall be subject to the Grant Budget 
and any other provision of this Grant Contract relating to allowable 
reimbursements.  

(2) An invoice under this Grant Contract shall not include any reimbursement 
request for future expenditures. 

(3) An invoice under this Grant Contract shall initiate the timeframe for 
reimbursement only when the State is in receipt of the invoice, and the invoice 
meets the minimum requirements of this section C.5. 

(4) An invoice under this Grant Contract shall be presented to the State within thirty 
(30) days after the end of the calendar month in which the subject costs were 
incurred or services were rendered by the Grantee.  An invoice submitted more 
than thirty (30) days after such date will NOT be paid.  The State will not deem 
such Grantee costs to be allowable and reimbursable by the State unless, at the 
sole discretion of the State, the failure to submit a timely invoice is warranted.  
The Grantee shall submit a special, written request for reimbursement with any 
such untimely invoice.  The request must detail the reason the invoice is untimely 
as well as the Grantee’s plan for submitting future invoices as required, and it 
must be signed by a Grantee agent that would be authorized to sign this Grant 
Contract. 

 
3. Grant Contract section E.2. is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 
 E.2. Communications and Contacts.  All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other 

communications required or contemplated by this Grant Contract shall be in writing and 
shall be made by certified, first class mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, 
by overnight courier service with an asset tracking system, or by email or facsimile 
transmission with recipient confirmation.  All communications, regardless of method of 
transmission, shall be addressed to the respective party as set out below:   

 
The State: 
 
Peggy Lewis, Director 

  Supplemental Nutrition Program 
Division of Family Health and Wellness  

  Tennessee Department of Health 
  Andrew Johnson Tower, 8

th
 Floor 

  710 James Robertson Parkway 
  Nashville, TN  37243 

Email Address: Margaret.t.lewis@tn.gov 
Telephone #: (615) 741-7218 
FAX #: (615) 532-7189 

 



  10-20-11 AMEND-G 
 

4 
 

 The Grantee: 
 
Rebekah Barnes, Administrator 

 Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department 
 921 East Third Street 
 Chattanooga, Tennessee 37403 
 Email Address: BeckyB@mail.hamiltontn.gov 
 Telephone # (423) 209-8000 
 FAX # (423) 209-8001 

 
A change to the above contact information requires written notice to the person designated by the 
other party to receive notice.    

 
All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other communications shall be considered 
effectively given upon receipt or recipient confirmation as may be required. 

 
4. Grant Contract Attachment 2 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the new attachment 2 

attached hereto. 
 

Required Approvals.  The State is not bound by this Amendment until it is signed by the contract 
parties and approved by appropriate officials in accordance with applicable Tennessee laws and 
regulations (depending upon the specifics of this contract, said officials may include, but are not limited 
to, the Commissioner of Finance and Administration, the Commissioner of Human Resources, and the 
Comptroller of the Treasury). 
 
Amendment Effective Date.  The revisions set forth herein shall be effective ten (10) days following the 
last signature.  All other terms and conditions of this Grant Contract not expressly amended herein 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT: 

 

GRANTEE SIGNATURE DATE 

 

 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF GRANTEE SIGNATORY (above)  

 

HAMILTON COUNTY GOVERNMENT: 



  10-20-11 AMEND-G 
 

5 
 

 

 

GRANTEE SIGNATURE DATE 

 

 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF GRANTEE SIGNATORY (above)   

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH: 

 

 

 

JOHN J. DREYZEHNER, MD, MPH, FACOEM, COMMISSIONER DATE 

 



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$4,219,300.00 $0.00 $4,219,300.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$1,785,600.00 $0.00 $1,785,600.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$312,000.00 $0.00 $312,000.00

5 Supplies
$104,100.00 $0.00 $104,100.00

6 Telephone
$18,300.00 $0.00 $18,300.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$7,100.00 $0.00 $7,100.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$5,600.00 $0.00 $5,600.00

10 Printing & Publications
$2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$35,600.00 $0.00 $35,600.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$300.00 $0.00 $300.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost 
$35,300.00 $0.00 $35,300.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$6,525,700.00 $0.00 $6,525,700.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 1)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN PROGRAM (WIC) AND PEER 

COUNSELING ROLL UP

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2014, and ending September 30, 2018.



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$1,057,100.00 $0.00 $1,057,100.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$449,000.00 $0.00 $449,000.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$78,000.00 $0.00 $78,000.00

5 Supplies
$16,700.00 $0.00 $16,700.00

6 Telephone
$4,100.00 $0.00 $4,100.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$1,400.00 $0.00 $1,400.00

10 Printing & Publications
$400.00 $0.00 $400.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$10,500.00 $0.00 $10,500.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost 
$14,700.00 $0.00 $14,700.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$1,633,900.00 $0.00 $1,633,900.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 2)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN PROGRAM (WIC) AND PEER 

COUNSELING ROLL UP

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2014, and ending September 30, 2015.



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$955,000.00 $0.00 $955,000.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$421,000.00 $0.00 $421,000.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$78,000.00 $0.00 $78,000.00

5 Supplies
$8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00

6 Telephone
$3,700.00 $0.00 $3,700.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$1,400.00 $0.00 $1,400.00

10 Printing & Publications
$100.00 $0.00 $100.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$6,700.00 $0.00 $6,700.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$1,475,900.00 $0.00 $1,475,900.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 3)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN PROGRAM (WIC) 

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2014, and ending September 30, 2015.



SALARIES AMOUNT

Amanda Arnold, Patietn Service Representative  $   2,158.42 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,220.92 x 3 x 100% +  $  1,225.00  Longevity $27,313.54

Jennie Berry, Nutrition Educator  $   2,766.08 x 9 x 50% +  $  2,908.84 x 3 x 50% $16,810.62

Alake Chui, Nutrition Educator  $   2,553.66 x 9 x 50% $11,491.47

Tere Burchfiled, Nutrition Educator  $   3,188.32 x 9 x 100% +  $  3,241.20 x 3 x 100% $38,418.48

Cheryel Byrd, Nutrition Educator  $   3,529.04 x 9 x 100% +  $  3,581.98 x 3 x 100% +  $  1,625.00  Longevity $44,132.30

Marion Clay, WIC Merchant Coordinator  $   2,940.44 x 9 x 100% +  $  3,004.65 x 3 x 100% +  $  2,100.00  Longevity $37,577.91

Tabitha Foster, Patietn Service Representative  $   2,071.95 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,136.12 x 3 x 100% $25,055.91

Renee Giulliani, Nutrition Educator  $   3,221.19 x 9 x 100% +  $  3,283.69 x 3 x 100% +  $  1,050.00  Longevity $39,891.78

Janice Green, Patient Service Representative  $   2,013.22 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,075.72 x 3 x 100% $24,346.14

Angie Gross, Program Manager  $   4,357.12 x 9 x 100% +  $  4,422.48 x 3 x 100% +  $     975.00  Longevity $53,456.52

Stephanie Grubb, Patient Service Representative  $   2,161.92 x 9 x 40% +  $  2,224.42 x 3 x 40% $10,452.22

Jolene Hare, Public Health Nurse  $   3,834.38 x 9 x 100% +  $  3,896.88 x 3 x 100% +  $     450.00  Longevity $46,650.06

Diani Jones, Public Health Nurse  $   3,926.18 x 9 x 40% +  $  3,988.68 x 3 x 40% $18,920.66

Amanda Kirkpatrick, Nutritionist  $   3,637.11 x 8 x 80% +  $  3,699.61 x 4 x 100% $38,075.94

Reda Lawson, Public Health Nurse  $   3,731.32 x 9 x 80% +  $  3,793.82 x 3 x 80% $35,970.67

Tamisha McGee, Patient Service Representative  $   1,988.42 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,050.92 x 3 x 100% $24,048.54

Leeann Miles, Patient Service Representative  $   2,258.36 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,320.86 x 3 x 100% +  $     900.00  Longevity $28,187.82

Cristina Heredia, Patient Service Representative  $   2,137.49 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,199.99 x 3 x 100% $25,837.38

James Rankins, WIC Field Representative  $   2,851.03 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,913.53 x 3 x 100% +  $  1,425.00  Longevity $35,824.86

Amanda Ruiz, Patient Service Representative  $   2,269.28 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,331.78 x 3 x 100% +  $     675.00  Longevity $28,093.86

Jennifer Salmerson, Nutritionist  $   3,790.29 x 9 x 100% +  $  3,852.79 x 3 x 100% $45,670.98

Kourtney Shartle, Nutrition Educator  $   3,194.20 x 9 x 100% +  $  3,256.70 x 3 x 100% +  $     375.00  Longevity $38,892.90

Florinda Farias, Patient Service Representative  $   2,215.90 x 10 x 100% $22,159.00

Rebecca Uldrick, Nutrition Educator  $   3,249.78 x 9 x 100% +  $  3,312.28 x 3 x 100% +  $     825.00  Longevity $40,009.86

Edna Walker, Public Health Nurse  $   2,352.73 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,415.23 x 3 x 100% +  $  1,275.00  Longevity $29,695.26

Rebecca Lanphear, Public Health Nurse Manager  $   4,491.42 x 9 x 20% +  $  4,558.79 x 3 x 20% $10,819.83

Judith Proctor, Secretary  $   2,478.85 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,541.35 x 3 x 100% $29,933.70

Nursing Time $127,300.00

TOTAL ROUNDED $955,000.00 

PROFESSIONAL FEE / GRANT & AWARD AMOUNT

$78,000.00 

TOTAL $78,000.00 

TRAVEL / CONFERENCES & MEETINGS AMOUNT

Local Travel $1,100.00 

$5,600.00 

TOTAL $6,700.00 

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET LINE-ITEM DETAIL

(BUDGET PAGE 4)

Training

Community Health Centers (Dodson Avenue/Southside)



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$102,100.00 $0.00 $102,100.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$28,000.00 $0.00 $28,000.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

5 Supplies
$8,700.00 $0.00 $8,700.00

6 Telephone
$400.00 $0.00 $400.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10 Printing & Publications
$300.00 $0.00 $300.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$3,800.00 $0.00 $3,800.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost (11.30 % of Salaries and Benefits)
$14,700.00 $0.00 $14,700.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$158,000.00 $0.00 $158,000.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 5)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - PEER COUNSELING

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2014, and ending September 30, 2015.



SALARIES AMOUNT

Jeanette McDonald, Peer Counselor  $  2,600.00 x 9 x 45% +  $  2,662.50 x 3 x 45% $14,124.38

Natalie Herrera, Peer Counselor  $  2,411.05 x 9 x 100% +  $  2,525.62 x 3 x 100% $29,276.31

Jamerra Jones, Peer Counselor  $  2,408.94 x 9 x 45% +  $  2,471.44 x 3 x 45% $13,092.65

Darci Francis, Peer Counselor  $  2,713.28 x 9 x 45% +  $  2,775.78 x 3 x 45% $14,736.09

Stacey Lubbers, Peer Counselor  $  2,600.00 x 5 x 45% $5,850.00

Vacant, Peer Counselor  $  2,314.00 x 12 x 45% $12,495.60

Vacant, Peer Counselor  $  2,314.00 x 12 x 45% $12,495.60

TOTAL ROUNDED $102,100.00 

TRAVEL / CONFERENCES & MEETINGS AMOUNT

Local Travel $300.00 

$3,500.00 

TOTAL $3,800.00 

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET LINE-ITEM DETAIL

(BUDGET PAGE 6)

Training



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$1,047,600.00 $0.00 $1,047,600.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$445,100.00 $0.00 $445,100.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$78,000.00 $0.00 $78,000.00

5 Supplies
$31,800.00 $0.00 $31,800.00

6 Telephone
$5,400.00 $0.00 $5,400.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$1,700.00 $0.00 $1,700.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$1,400.00 $0.00 $1,400.00

10 Printing & Publications
$700.00 $0.00 $700.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$7,100.00 $0.00 $7,100.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$100.00 $0.00 $100.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost 
$15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$1,633,900.00 $0.00 $1,633,900.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 7)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN PROGRAM (WIC) AND PEER 

COUNSELING ROLL UP

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2015, and ending September 30, 2016.



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$944,600.00 $0.00 $944,600.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$411,000.00 $0.00 $411,000.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$78,000.00 $0.00 $78,000.00

5 Supplies
$29,400.00 $0.00 $29,400.00

6 Telephone
$4,100.00 $0.00 $4,100.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$1,700.00 $0.00 $1,700.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$1,400.00 $0.00 $1,400.00

10 Printing & Publications
$500.00 $0.00 $500.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$5,100.00 $0.00 $5,100.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$100.00 $0.00 $100.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost  
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$1,475,900.00 $0.00 $1,475,900.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 8)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN PROGRAM (WIC) 

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2015, and ending September 30, 2016.



SALARIES AMOUNT

Amanda Arnold, Patient Service Representative  $   2,187.03 x 12 x 100% $26,244.36

Jennie Berry, Nutrition Educator  $   3,170.26 x 12 x 39.98% $15,209.64

Vacant, Nutrition Educator  $   3,215.33 x 12 x 50% $19,291.98

Tera Burchfield, Nutrition Educator  $   3,101.17 x 12 x 100% $37,214.04

Cheryel Byrd, Nutrition Educator  $   3,571.13 x 12 x 100% $42,853.56

Marion Clay, WIC Merchant Coordinator  $   3,039.15 x 12 x 100% $36,469.80

Tabitha Foster, Patient Service Representative  $   2,023.04 x 12 x 100% $24,276.48

Renee Giulliani, Nutrition Educator  $   3,223.87 x 12 x 100% $38,686.44

Janice Green, Patient Service Representative  $   1,964.12 x 12 x 100% $23,569.44

Angie Gross, Program Manager  $   4,325.85 x 12 x 100% $51,910.20

Stephanie Grub, Patient Service Representative  $   2,109.19 x 12 x 40% $10,124.11

Jolene Hare, Public Health Nurse  $   3,772.11 x 6 x 100% +  $  3,772.11 x 6 x 80% $40,738.79

Diani Jones, Public Health Nurse  $   3,830.42 x 12 x 40% $18,386.02

Amanda Kirkpatrick, Nutritionist  $   3,548.40 x 12 x 100% $42,580.80

Reda Lawson, Public Health Nurse  $   3,640.31 x 12 x 80% $34,946.98

Tamisha McGee, Patient Service Representative  $   1,939.90 x 12 x 100% $23,278.80

Leeann Miles, Patient Service Representative  $   2,272.03 x 12 x 100% $27,264.36

Cristina Miranda, Patient Service Representative  $   2,085.36 x 12 x 100% $25,024.32

James Rankins, WIC Field Representative  $   2,894.00 x 12 x 100% $34,728.00

Ana Ruiz, Patient Service Representative  $   2,263.92 x 12 x 100% $27,167.04

Jannifer Scanlan, Nutritionist  $   3,697.85 x 12 x 100% $44,374.20

Kourtney Shartle, Nutrition Educator  $   3,116.29 x 12 x 100% $37,395.48

Lucia Silveira, Patient Service Representative  $   2,247.89 x 12 x 100% $26,974.68

Rebecca Uldrick, Nutrition Educator  $   3,233.03 x 12 x 100% $38,796.36

Edna Walker, Public Health Nurse  $   2,395.35 x 12 x 100% $28,744.20

Rebecca Lanphear, Public Health Nurse Manager  $   4,381.88 x 12 x 20% $10,516.51

Judith Proctor, Secretary  $   2,418.39 x 12 x 100% $29,020.68

Overtime $1,000.00

Nursing Time $127,800.00

TOTAL ROUNDED $944,600.00 

PROFESSIONAL FEE / GRANT & AWARD AMOUNT

$78,000.00 

TOTAL $78,000.00 

TRAVEL / CONFERENCES & MEETINGS AMOUNT

Local Travel $500.00 

$4,600.00 

TOTAL $5,100.00 

Training

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET LINE-ITEM DETAIL

(BUDGET PAGE 9)

Community Health Centers (Dodson Avenue/Southside)



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$103,000.00 $0.00 $103,000.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$34,100.00 $0.00 $34,100.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

5 Supplies
$2,400.00 $0.00 $2,400.00

6 Telephone
$1,300.00 $0.00 $1,300.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10 Printing & Publications
$200.00 $0.00 $200.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost (10.941% of Salaries and Benefits)
$15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$158,000.00 $0.00 $158,000.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 10)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - PEER COUNSELING

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2015, and ending September 30, 2016.



SALARIES AMOUNT

Jeannette McDonald, Peer Counselor  $   2,600.00 x 12 x 50% $15,600.00

Jolene Hare, Public Health Nurse  $   3,772.11 x 6 x 20% $4,526.53

Natalie Herrera, Peer Counselor  $   2,736.08 x 12 x 100% $32,832.96

Stacy Lubbers, Peer Counselor  $   2,600.00 x 12 x 57.4635% $17,928.61

Darci Francis, Peer Counselor  $   2,600.00 x 12 x 56.25% $17,550.00

Sarah Deprimo, Peer Counselor  $   2,600.00 x 8 x 57.50% $11,960.00

Vacant, Peer Counselor  $   2,608.67 x 1 x 100% $2,608.67

TOTAL ROUNDED $103,000.00 

TRAVEL / CONFERENCES & MEETINGS AMOUNT

Local Travel $300.00 

$1,700.00 

TOTAL $2,000.00 

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET LINE-ITEM DETAIL

(BUDGET PAGE 11)

Training



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$1,050,100.00 $0.00 $1,050,100.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$444,400.00 $0.00 $444,400.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$78,000.00 $0.00 $78,000.00

5 Supplies
$31,400.00 $0.00 $31,400.00

6 Telephone
$4,400.00 $0.00 $4,400.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$1,700.00 $0.00 $1,700.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$1,400.00 $0.00 $1,400.00

10 Printing & Publications
$700.00 $0.00 $700.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$9,000.00 $0.00 $9,000.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$100.00 $0.00 $100.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost 
$2,800.00 $0.00 $2,800.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$1,624,000.00 $0.00 $1,624,000.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 12)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN PROGRAM (WIC) AND PEER 

COUNSELING ROLL UP

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2016, and ending September 30, 2017.



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$934,700.00 $0.00 $934,700.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$411,000.00 $0.00 $411,000.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$78,000.00 $0.00 $78,000.00

5 Supplies
$29,400.00 $0.00 $29,400.00

6 Telephone
$4,100.00 $0.00 $4,100.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$1,700.00 $0.00 $1,700.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$1,400.00 $0.00 $1,400.00

10 Printing & Publications
$500.00 $0.00 $500.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$5,100.00 $0.00 $5,100.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$100.00 $0.00 $100.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$1,466,000.00 $0.00 $1,466,000.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 13)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN PROGRAM (WIC) 

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2016, and ending September 30, 2017.



SALARIES AMOUNT

Amanda Arnold, Patient Service Representative  $   2,187.03 x 12 x 100% $26,244.36

Jennie Berry, Nutrition Educator  $   3,170.26 x 12 x 39.98% $15,209.64

Vacant, Nutrition Educator  $   3,215.33 x 12 x 50% $19,291.98

Tera Burchfield, Nutrition Educator  $   3,101.17 x 12 x 100% $37,214.04

Cheryel Byrd, Nutrition Educator  $   3,571.13 x 12 x 100% $42,853.56

Marion Clay, WIC Merchant Coordinator  $   3,039.15 x 12 x 100% $36,469.80

Tabitha Foster, Patient Service Representative  $   2,023.04 x 12 x 100% $24,276.48

Renee Giulliani, Nutrition Educator  $   3,223.87 x 12 x 100% $38,686.44

Janice Green, Patient Service Representative  $   1,964.12 x 12 x 100% $23,569.44

Angie Gross, Program Manager  $   4,325.85 x 12 x 100% $51,910.20

Stephanie Grub, Patient Service Representative  $   2,109.19 x 12 x 40% $10,124.11

Jolene Hare, Public Health Nurse  $   3,772.11 x 6 x 100% $22,632.66

Jolene Hare, Public Health Nurse  $   3,772.11 x 6 x 80% $18,106.13

Diani Jones, Public Health Nurse  $   3,830.42 x 12 x 40% $18,386.02

Amanda Kirkpatrick, Nutritionist  $   3,548.40 x 12 x 100% $42,580.80

Reda Lawson, Public Health Nurse  $   3,640.31 x 12 x 80% $34,946.98

Tamisha McGee, Patient Service Representative  $   1,939.90 x 12 x 100% $23,278.80

Leeann Miles, Patient Service Representative  $   2,272.03 x 12 x 100% $27,264.36

Cristina Miranda, Patient Service Representative  $   2,085.36 x 12 x 100% $25,024.32

James Rankins, WIC Field Representative  $   2,894.00 x 12 x 100% $34,728.00

Ana Ruiz, Patient Service Representative  $   2,263.92 x 12 x 100% $27,167.04

Jannifer Scanlan, Nutritionist  $   3,697.85 x 12 x 100% $44,374.20

Kourtney Shartle, Nutrition Educator  $   3,116.29 x 12 x 100% $37,395.48

Lucia Silveira, Patient Service Representative  $   2,247.89 x 12 x 100% $26,974.68

Rebecca Uldrick, Nutrition Educator  $   3,233.03 x 12 x 100% $38,796.36

Edna Walker, Public Health Nurse  $   2,395.35 x 12 x 100% $28,744.20

Rebecca Lanphear, Public Health Nurse Manager  $   4,381.88 x 12 x 20% $10,516.51

Judith Proctor, Secretary  $   2,418.39 x 12 x 100% $29,020.68

Overtime $1,000.00

Nursing Time $117,935.00

TOTAL ROUNDED $934,700.00 

PROFESSIONAL FEE / GRANT & AWARD AMOUNT

$78,000.00 

TOTAL $78,000.00 

TRAVEL / CONFERENCES & MEETINGS AMOUNT

Local Travel $500.00 

$4,600.00 

TOTAL $5,100.00 

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET LINE-ITEM DETAIL

(BUDGET PAGE 14)

Training

Community Health Centers (Dodson Avenue/Southside)



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$115,400.00 $0.00 $115,400.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$33,400.00 $0.00 $33,400.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

5 Supplies
$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00

6 Telephone
$300.00 $0.00 $300.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10 Printing & Publications
$200.00 $0.00 $200.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$3,900.00 $0.00 $3,900.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost (1.88% of Salaries and Benefits)
$2,800.00 $0.00 $2,800.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$158,000.00 $0.00 $158,000.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 15)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - PEER COUNSELING

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2016, and ending September 30, 2017.



SALARIES AMOUNT

Jeannette McDonald, Peer Counselor  $   2,600.00 x 12 x 50% $15,600.00

Natalie Herrera, Peer Counselor  $   2,608.37 x 12 x 60.0087% $18,782.99

Jamerra Jones, Peer Counselor  $   2,350.19 x 12 x 57.4635% $16,206.02

Darci Francis, Peer Counselor  $   2,600.00 x 12 x 56.25% $17,550.00

Vacant, Peer Counselor  $   2,314.00 x 12 x 57.50% $15,966.60

Vacant, Peer Counselor  $   2,608.67 x 12 x 100% $31,304.04

TOTAL ROUNDED $115,400.00 

TRAVEL / CONFERENCES & MEETINGS AMOUNT

Local Travel $300.00 

$3,600.00 

TOTAL $3,900.00 

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET LINE-ITEM DETAIL

(BUDGET PAGE 16)

Training



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$1,064,500.00 $0.00 $1,064,500.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$447,100.00 $0.00 $447,100.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$78,000.00 $0.00 $78,000.00

5 Supplies
$24,200.00 $0.00 $24,200.00

6 Telephone
$4,400.00 $0.00 $4,400.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$1,700.00 $0.00 $1,700.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$1,400.00 $0.00 $1,400.00

10 Printing & Publications
$700.00 $0.00 $700.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$9,000.00 $0.00 $9,000.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$100.00 $0.00 $100.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost 
$2,800.00 $0.00 $2,800.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$1,633,900.00 $0.00 $1,633,900.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 17)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN PROGRAM (WIC) AND PEER 

COUNSELING ROLL UP

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2017, and ending September 30, 2018.



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$949,100.00 $0.00 $949,100.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$413,700.00 $0.00 $413,700.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$78,000.00 $0.00 $78,000.00

5 Supplies
$22,200.00 $0.00 $22,200.00

6 Telephone
$4,100.00 $0.00 $4,100.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$1,700.00 $0.00 $1,700.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$1,400.00 $0.00 $1,400.00

10 Printing & Publications
$500.00 $0.00 $500.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$5,100.00 $0.00 $5,100.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$100.00 $0.00 $100.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$1,475,900.00 $0.00 $1,475,900.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 18)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN PROGRAM (WIC) 

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2017, and ending September 30, 2018.



SALARIES AMOUNT

Amanda Arnold, Patient Service Representative  $   2,187.03 x 12 x 100% $26,244.36

Jennie Berry, Nutrition Educator  $   3,170.26 x 12 x 39.98% $15,209.64

Vacant, Nutrition Educator  $   3,215.33 x 12 x 50% $19,291.98

Tera Burchfield, Nutrition Educator  $   3,101.17 x 12 x 100% $37,214.04

Cheryel Byrd, Nutrition Educator  $   3,571.13 x 12 x 100% $42,853.56

Marion Clay, WIC Merchant Coordinator  $   3,039.15 x 12 x 100% $36,469.80

Tabitha Foster, Patient Service Representative  $   2,023.04 x 12 x 100% $24,276.48

Renee Giulliani, Nutrition Educator  $   3,223.87 x 12 x 100% $38,686.44

Janice Green, Patient Service Representative  $   1,964.12 x 12 x 100% $23,569.44

Angie Gross, Program Manager  $   4,325.85 x 12 x 100% $51,910.20

Stephanie Grub, Patient Service Representative  $   2,109.19 x 12 x 40% $10,124.11

Jolene Hare, Public Health Nurse  $   3,772.11 x 12 x 100% $45,265.32

Diani Jones, Public Health Nurse  $   3,830.42 x 12 x 40% $18,386.02

Amanda Kirkpatrick, Nutritionist  $   3,548.40 x 12 x 100% $42,580.80

Reda Lawson, Public Health Nurse  $   3,640.31 x 12 x 80% $34,946.98

Tamisha McGee, Patient Service Representative  $   1,939.90 x 12 x 100% $23,278.80

Leeann Miles, Patient Service Representative  $   2,272.03 x 12 x 100% $27,264.36

Cristina Miranda, Patient Service Representative  $   2,085.36 x 12 x 100% $25,024.32

James Rankins, WIC Field Representative  $   2,894.00 x 12 x 100% $34,728.00

Ana Ruiz, Patient Service Representative  $   2,263.92 x 12 x 100% $27,167.04

Jannifer Scanlan, Nutritionist  $   3,697.85 x 12 x 100% $44,374.20

Kourtney Shartle, Nutrition Educator  $   3,116.29 x 12 x 100% $37,395.48

Lucia Silveira, Patient Service Representative  $   2,247.89 x 12 x 100% $26,974.68

Rebecca Uldrick, Nutrition Educator  $   3,233.03 x 12 x 100% $38,796.36

Edna Walker, Public Health Nurse  $   2,395.35 x 12 x 100% $28,744.20

Rebecca Lanphear, Public Health Nurse Manager  $   4,381.88 x 12 x 20% $10,516.51

Judith Proctor, Secretary  $   2,418.39 x 12 x 100% $29,020.68

Overtime $1,000.00

Nursing Time $127,800.00

TOTAL ROUNDED $949,100.00 

PROFESSIONAL FEE / GRANT & AWARD AMOUNT

$78,000.00 

TOTAL $78,000.00 

TRAVEL / CONFERENCES & MEETINGS AMOUNT

Local Travel $500.00 

$4,600.00 

TOTAL $5,100.00 

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET LINE-ITEM DETAIL

(BUDGET PAGE 19)

Training

Community Health Centers (Dodson Avenue/Southside)



POLICY 03 

Object

 Line-item 

Reference

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1

(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)
GRANT CONTRACT

GRANTEE 

PARTICIPATION TOTAL PROJECT

1 Salaries
2

$115,400.00 $0.00 $115,400.00

2 Benefits & Taxes
$33,400.00 $0.00 $33,400.00

4, 15 Professional Fee/ Grant & Award 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

5 Supplies
$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00

6 Telephone
$300.00 $0.00 $300.00

7 Postage & Shipping
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

8 Occupancy
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 Equipment Rental & Maintenance
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10 Printing & Publications
$200.00 $0.00 $200.00

11, 12 Travel/ Conferences & Meetings
2

$3,900.00 $0.00 $3,900.00

13 Interest 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Insurance
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 Depreciation 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 Other Non-Personnel 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 Capital Purchase 
2

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

22 Indirect Cost (1.88% of Salaries and Benefits)
$2,800.00 $0.00 $2,800.00

24 In-Kind Expense
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 GRAND TOTAL
$158,000.00 $0.00 $158,000.00

1
  Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the Department of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation 

Plans for Subrecipients of Federal and State Grant Monies, Appendix A . (posted on the Internet at:  http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/documents/policy3.pdf).

2  Applicable detail follows this page if line-item is funded.

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET

(BUDGET PAGE 20)

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT - PEER COUNSELING

APPLICABLE PERIOD:  The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period 

beginning October 1, 2017, and ending September 30, 2018.



SALARIES AMOUNT

Jeannette McDonald, Peer Counselor  $   2,600.00 x 12 x 50% $15,600.00

Natalie Herrera, Peer Counselor  $   2,608.37 x 12 x 60.0087% $18,782.99

Jamerra Jones, Peer Counselor  $   2,350.19 x 12 x 57.4635% $16,206.02

Darci Francis, Peer Counselor  $   2,600.00 x 12 x 56.25% $17,550.00

Vacant, Peer Counselor  $   2,314.00 x 12 x 57.50% $15,966.60

Vacant, Peer Counselor  $   2,608.67 x 12 x 100% $31,304.04

TOTAL ROUNDED $115,400.00 

TRAVEL / CONFERENCES & MEETINGS AMOUNT

Local Travel $300.00 

$3,600.00 

TOTAL $3,900.00 

ATTACHMENT 2 (continued)

REVISED GRANT BUDGET LINE-ITEM DETAIL

(BUDGET PAGE 21)

Training



No. 916-37 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" 
SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROAD AND TO ESTABLISH A 
SPEED LIMIT THEREFOR: Skybrook Drive as extended. 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 1114-33, dated November 19, 2014, shows the mileage of 

Skybrook Drive as being 0.60 miles being described as leading from Roy Lane 
west to a temporary turnaround; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the new extension of Skybrook Drive was constructed, leading from the 

existing Skybrook Drive north 0.35 miles to a turnaround, being in the 2nd Civil 
District, the 9th   County Commission District in the Providence Point 
Subdivision, on State Tax Map Number 104, has a 50’ right-of-way, a 8" stone 
base, a 2" plant mix pavement with concrete curbs and was built by Brown 
Brothers Construction and Spears Hopkins Paving for the Developer, Stonefort 
Ooltewah LLC; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Skybrook Drive leads from Roy Lane 0.95 miles west to a turnaround; and,

  
 
WHEREAS,  the above named road has been inspected by the Hamilton County Division of 

Public Works and meets current County Subdivision Regulations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named road be declared a district road, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the speed limit on said road shall be 25 M.P.H., and that violation of the 

same, when posted, shall be a misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of this State.  

 
 3. That the "Master List of Roads and Speed Limits" is hereby amended. 
 



 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 916-38 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 21, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROAD AND TO 
ESTABLISH A SPEED LIMIT THEREFORE: Haven Port Lane. 
 
WHEREAS, Haven Port Lane is in the 2nd Civil District, the 7th County Commission 

District, in Easthaven Subdivision, on State Tax Map Number 160, has a 
50’ right-of-way, a 8" stone base, a 2" plant mix pavement with concrete 
curbs and was built by Brown Brothers Construction and Spears Hopkins 
Paving for the developer East Haven Partners, LLC; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Haven Port Lane leads from Ooltewah Ringgold Road east 0.45 miles to 

Haven Port Lane; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  the above named road has been inspected by the Hamilton County Division 

of Public Works and meets current County Subdivision Regulations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named road be declared a district road, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H., and that violation of the 

same, when posted, shall be a misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided 
by the laws of this State.  

 
 3. That the "Master List of Roads and Speed Limits" is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 21, 2016 

  
Date 

 


	9-21-16 Public Agenda - Revised
	916-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - August 31, 2016 _2540_08-31-16 Recessed
	916-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - August 31, 2016 _2541_08-31-16 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	916-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - September 7, 2016 _2542_09-07-16 Regular
	916-_S_Report_Order of Designation Planning Commission  Todd Leamon September 12 2016_2539_Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon September 21 2016
	916-21_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_2543_09-21-16
	916-21_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_2543_09-21-16A
	916-22_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Highland Park Neighborhood Association_2521_CommMackey Highland Park CERP
	916-22_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Highland Park Neighborhood Association_2521_2360_001
	916-23_R_Rheubin Taylor_Contract between Hamilton County and TVA for EMS services_2524_Contract between Hamilton County and TVA for EMS services
	916-23_S_Rheubin Taylor_Contract between Hamilton County and TVA for EMS services_2524_RACCOON MOUNTAIN EMERGENCY MEDICAL RESPONSE AGREEMENT
	916-24_R_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for Want To Foundation Inc_2529_CommBoyd Want To
	916-24_S_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for Want To Foundation Inc_2529_2396_001
	916-25_R_Todd Leamon_Application for the Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP)_2544_RESOLUTION FOR FLAP
	916-26_R_Christie Jordan_FY2017 Board of Education Budget Amendments_2545_DOEResolution092116
	916-26_S_Christie Jordan_FY2017 Board of Education Budget Amendments_2545_2411_001
	916-27A_R_Zoning_Zoning_2530_Co 112
	916-27A_S_Zoning_Zoning_2530_112
	916-27B_R_Zoning_Zoning_2531_Co 112B
	916-27B_S_Zoning_Zoning_2531_112
	916-28_R_Zoning_Zoning_2532_Co 113
	916-28_S_Zoning_Zoning_2532_113
	916-29_R_Zoning_Zoning_2533_Co 115
	916-29_S_Zoning_Zoning_2533_115
	916-30_R_Zoning_Zoning_2534_Co 116
	916-30_S_Zoning_Zoning_2534_116
	916-31_R_Zoning_Zoning_2535_Co 118
	916-31_S_Zoning_Zoning_2535_118
	916-32A_R_Zoning_Zoning_2536_Co 119A
	916-32A_S_Zoning_Zoning_2536_119
	916-32B_R_Zoning_Zoning_2537_Co 119B
	916-32B_S_Zoning_Zoning_2537_119
	916-33_R_Sheriff Hammond_Donation of AED to Sheriff_2518_916-33_R_Sheriff Hammond_Donation of AED to Sheriff_2518_Resolution for AED
	916-34_R_Lee Norris_Surplus of a cotitled vehicle_2517_Sale Creek F250
	916-35_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel August 2016_2527_Fuel Resolution August 2016
	916-35_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel August 2016_2527_August 2016 docs
	916-36_R_Becky Barnes_WIC Program_2528_CERP WIC State Resolution 2015-2019
	916-36_S_Becky Barnes_WIC Program_2528_WIC State Contract 2015 - 2019
	916-37_R_Todd Leamon_Amend the Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_2525_SkybrookDrive
	916-38_R_Todd Leamon_Amend Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_2523_EasthavenSubdivision



